
 

Community Involvement Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

May 18, 2011 
 
 

Committee Members Present: Jason Barnstead-Long, Liz Gatti, Brian Heron, Linda Nettekoven, 
Stanley Penkin, Howard Shapiro, Peter Stark 
Absent: Paula Amato, Judith Gonzalez Plascencia, Anyeley Hallova, Shirley Nacoste, Lai-Lani 
Ovalles, Rahul Rastogi, Ryan Schera, Alison Stoll 
BPS Staff: Raihana Ansary, Eden Dabbs, Chris Dornan, Eric Engstrom, Bob Glascock, Barry 
Manning, Marty Stockton 
Visitors: none 
 
 
Welcome 
 
Howard began the meeting by reviewing the agenda, focusing specifically on the equity agenda item. 
Howard stated that Equity is integral to the Portland Plan, and requested several CIC members attend 
an upcoming Planning and Sustainability Commission meeting to offer the committee’s perspective.  
Howard went on to ask the CIC members to consider how they feel about the current definition of 
“Equity.”  Is it on track? 
 
The April 20, 2011 meeting minutes were not voted on at the meeting, as a quorum was not achieved. 
 
Announcements 
 
Marty announced the following upcoming events: 
 

 Planning and Sustainability Commission – Hearing and recommendation on Portland Plan: 
Factual Basis and Buildable Lands Inventory, Tuesday, June 28, 6:00 PM; 1900 Building, 
1900 SW 4th Avenue, Room 2500, 2nd Floor 

 
Howard then introduced Eric Engstrom to talk about the Buildable Lands Inventory as it relates to the 
Portland Plan. 
 
Eric explained that they moved the May 24th meeting to June 28th.  The second batch of background 
reports is forthcoming, but they are holding off on the Employment Opportunities Analysis and 
Public Schools Report until the fall.  The Buildable Lands Inventory should be ready by June 28th, 
and posted to the web next week.  One public comment received from various neighborhoods is that 
some BLI sites have multiple constraints, and a request has been made to reduce development at sites 
with multiple constraints.  That request was adopted.  To clarify, vacant as well as underutilized lands 
are considered part of “buildable” lands. 
 
Jason asked about current use in terms of industrial land and buildings moving to more green 
practices.  Is this part of the equation? 
 
Eric differentiated between types of buildable land, industrial vs. commercial, and how they break 
down into a dozen commercial geographies.  He also pointed out the difference between locations of 
sites, such as Central City commercial, Central Eastside industrial and Marine Drive industrial uses. 

May 18, 2011 Portland Plan, CIC Minutes - Draft Page 1 of 9 



 

 
Stanley asked about residential capacity with the new model.  Eric replied that there is a slight 
concern about the amount of single-family housing in North Portland, but it is still in process. 
 
Brian asked about the continued availability of public open space.  Eric responded that they are 
projecting for future land use, and are making adjustments to preserve open space as part of their 
calculations for the future. 
 
Linda inquired about how this modeling will factor in school property, which has higher-density 
zoning.  Eric answered that there are some accommodations that can be made with schools. 
 
Equity and the Portland Plan 
 
Howard moved on to ways to communicate equity issues with the draft plan.  He introduced Bob 
Glascock to speak about the Equity TAG and what “equity” means to them. 
 
Bob introduced himself as part of the Equity TAG, and took the CIC members through the TAG’s 
mission statement and one-page handout.  He agreed with Howard’s assertion that equity was a 
primary, central issue to the Portland Plan.  He also related Mayor Adams’ statement that equity is an 
overarching part of the Portland Plan. 
 
Bob told the CIC that the Equity TAG began primarily with City and technical agency staff, and then 
invited other community members to the group, including many in the disabilities community. 
 
Bob also related that the TAG thought the Portland Plan’s most documented disparities are ethnic and 
racial, and that reducing these disparities should be one of the key measures of Portland Plan 
progress.  They felt that saying “we care” isn’t enough, change needs to be made.  The group is 
focusing on metrics and ways to quantify and evaluate progress.  An Office of Equity has been 
proposed, but they don’t have a budget yet.  Reducing disparities will take the whole community 
working together to achieve. 
 
The Equity TAG recommended that the Equity Preamble language, “Equity is when everyone has 
access to opportunities necessary to satisfy essential needs, advance their well-being, and achieve 
their full potential,” should be expanded so that everyone knows they have a part in creating equity.   
 
Bob added that PPAG agreed the Equity definition on page 2 of the Equity TAG handout was 
something to aspire toward:  “We have a shared fate – as individuals within a community and 
communities within society.  All communities need the ability to shape their own present and future.  
Equity is both the means to healthy communities and an end that benefits us all.” 
 
Marty concurred and stated this language will make it in some form into the Equity Preamble. 
 
Judy BlueHorse Skelton said she liked “working toward equity requires understanding of historical 
context” and asked for “history” to get included in the language. 
 
Bob agreed that there is importance in recognizing history as part of equity. 
 
Judy mentioned an Oregon state “day of acknowledgement” for past discriminatory laws, to provide 
historical perspective on why disparities exist. 
 

May 18, 2011 Portland Plan, CIC Minutes - Draft Page 2 of 9 



 

Howard confirmed with the CIC members that history is important and should be a part of equity 
discussions moving forward. 
 
Stanley warned that there is risk in over defining and wordsmithing the term “equity.”  He thought 
more time should be spent focusing on policies, outcomes and actions which speak at the local level.  
Focus on benchmarks and actions with physical results that resonate with the average citizen.  What 
happens on the ground is the most important thing. 
 
Howard said that equity is more than ethnic.  Peter saw the biggest disparity in geography (e.g., 
Eastside versus Westside) 
 
Brian mentioned that agreeing on a definition for equity might work as a snapshot for right now, but 
if we define it too specifically the definition won’t have room to grow into conditions that exist 20 
years from now. 
 
Linda said both the short definition on page 2, as well as the longer one on page 3, from the Equity 
TAG handout, were confusing in terms of figuring out what the goal or result looks like.  She 
emphasized that she did not want to lose the language, but did want to show a goal. 
 
Liz said that if we use the longer, page 3 version, we should find a way to add “and revision” in front 
of “of fairness.”  Recently she and Judy Snow from the Association of Down Syndrome talked about 
three different levels of inclusion: 1) basic inclusion (amicable, but no shared actions), 2) mechanical 
inclusion (people work together but they have no personal connection), and 3) crossover inclusion 
(understanding and acceptance of each other’s unique gifts.)  We’re looking for an impassioned 
citizenry to run with the definition. 
 
Howard summarized with Judy that it is all part of a bigger picture, that no group is an island, they 
are all interwoven.  Judy went on to say that African-American community and Native community 
still have deep wounds under the surface that might require acknowledgement of history in relation to 
the present and informing the future. 
 
Brian said there are big cultural differences between predominant American western democratic 
society’s culture and that of newcomers, and they do not always mesh well. 
 
Linda agreed with Judy, and recommended including historical context language into a bullet point of 
“making opportunity real”, etc.  She also recommended adding a key element that puts racial and 
ethnic issues front and center in equity language. 
 
Howard added that it is important to include history in bold to the language of equity.  It is 
impossible to list every inequity, but there is a consciousness to achieve an understanding of this.  He 
reiterated that equity is central to the Portland Plan and wants language that makes every person in the 
city relate to it saying “this is for me”. 
 
Brian – CIC doesn’t have, or necessarily have to have, the perfect answer.  We need to create ways 
for communities to help Portland define and redefine “equity” as it evolves. 
 
Liz agreed and stated we need dialogue back and forth between the City, CIC and communities at-
large. 
 
 

May 18, 2011 Portland Plan, CIC Minutes - Draft Page 3 of 9 



 

Eden asked the group if it made sense to name specific Native American and African-American 
populations in the Preamble, a section on history and context.  Stanley stated his fear that if you name 
two groups, you exclude twelve others.  Raihana added that even the order you mention specific 
groups in a list could be seen as favoritism. 
 
Howard asked the group if Equity should be shown as the heart, soul and essence of the Portland Plan 
in plain language. Marty confirmed that this language already exists, reading similar language directly 
from the Equity Preamble. 
 
Marty added that while history is important for some, it is not the same for newcomers.  For example, 
the history shared by African-Americans is not the same as a newcomer from Somalia. 
 
Howard asked the group what should be taken to the Commission. 
 
Bob asked if there are there good visual examples to show.  A good example might be to show the big 
investments made to the Pearl and Waterfront Districts and big investments and compare and contrast 
with the Cully neighborhood and East Portland locations that still have dirt roads.  Bob also asked the 
group to come up with good stories about disparities that people face in the community at large.  He 
cautioned that the goal is not to isolate or exclude anyone, so choosing the right kind of example 
would be crucial. 
 
Jason responded that using the story from the past about the proposed Mt. Hood Freeway, and how 
disparate communities came together to successfully fight to keep their communities together might 
be a good example. 
 
Howard asked if the group thought that geographic disparity was important to cover, and if equity 
could be used to balance geographic disparities in the Pearl, Downtown, etc. 
 
Eric replied that it is an important issue, whether this is strictly about people or geography for 
geography’s sake.  He said people should be careful about using “pure geography” as there are many 
other factors to consider when planning for future equity. 
 
Jason mentioned that there is a see-saw effect, with sprawl moving people out to the edges, then 
people reflexively moving back into the central city.  We should focus on where communities and 
services presently are, and make them better there, instead of creating incentives for communities to 
move to where money is being spent. 
 
Stanley cautioned about the danger of a backlash if you put money too exclusively into one area, for 
example in the eastern portion of East Portland, to the extent of being a detriment to the other parts of 
town.  Equity is an issue about neighborhood and community identity. 
 
Liz stated that in East Portland, newcomers move out there, and experience lack of infrastructure, 
sidewalks, and paved roads. 
 
Marty gave examples of disparities, such as minorities making up 48% of public school rosters, and 
higher unemployment rates for African-American men.  There is untapped potential in these minority 
populations. 
 
Jason noted that past housing policies, made with good intentions, had the unintended result of 
displacing African-American communities.  He said that housing policies should move forward in a 
more equitable way 

May 18, 2011 Portland Plan, CIC Minutes - Draft Page 4 of 9 



 

 
Eden said that the CIC could use the DCL partners to help with messaging of strategies and 
identifying and choosing images of disparities.  If someone sent an email with these questions the 
DCL partners could help answer or provide ideas for imagery. 
 
Howard asked Bob if the CIC provided important info that the Equity TAG could use.  Bob replied 
that the discussion and ideas provided for the definition of equity, and examples the group talked 
about were helpful, and he will take them and present to the Equity TAG. 
 
Howard asked the group for ideas on how to get the word out to partner agencies.  Bob stated that the 
Mayor has encouraged cooperation amongst partner agencies.  Is there anything that would speak best 
to partners?  Are we missing opportunities with others?  We could use part of the message for the city 
business piece, Objectives and Actions Point C.  Showing is better than telling.  If Portland increases 
minority hiring and contracting and has better accountability for progress over time, perhaps partners 
would join in. 
 
Howard asked if it was a good idea to ask all private and public organization partners to look at the 
definition of “equity” and endorse it?  Parks already endorses the word equity.  Peter’s group 
endorses equity.  Howard recommended going to each partner agency and having leadership endorse 
the term equity. 
 
Linda said that in Action 3, Column A, organizations already have a concentrated equity effort, for 
example Multnomah County’s Office of Equity, as well as efforts at the local school level. She 
recommended partnering with these “sister offices” to create a stronger message. 
 
Bob added that the Equity TAG noticed this as well, and asked to recognize that other people outside 
the City are doing the same thing. 
 
Liz mentioned that, in general, the Portland business community won’t get excited about equity 
unless it improves their respective businesses, and makes the city a more vital, dynamic place.  
Connecting around the idea of “gifts”, that each Portlander has unique gifts to give the community, 
regardless of physical or mental differences should resonate with the business community.  She made 
the recommendation to move language to include “gifts to share”, that employers would see this 
language as an opportunity to improve their business. 
 
Peter agreed that businesses are first and foremost about making money.  It is important to recognize 
geographic differences and inequities.  There are issues that need to be addressed surrounding 
introducing workforce housing to the eastside.  The 50% median family income limit is too high for 
low-income housing funds.  This creates inequity for “lower middle-class” workers that want to live 
close to their work. 
 
Howard requested that Bob work with Marty to produce a joint equity report to submit to the PSC.  
Marty suggested that this should dovetail with the Portland Plan Phase 3 update already scheduled to 
happen at PSC in July.  When they go back to cover public involvement, including a discussion about 
equity should be a natural fit. 
 
CIC Decisions and Follow up Actions 
 
Howard asked Marty to give an update on the subcommittee to recruit new members into the CIC.  
Marty stated that Stan, Paula, Anyeley, and Howard volunteered for the subcommittee.  So far a small 
number of applications have been received.  The last time they solicited for members they received 

May 18, 2011 Portland Plan, CIC Minutes - Draft Page 5 of 9 



 

roughly 80 applications.  She thought this may be in no small part because they spent $3500 for 
advertising in the first round and none in the latest round.  They wanted to experiment in the second 
round and see if networking and word-of-mouth would make up for lack of advertising dollars.  They 
reached out to personal contacts in DCL partner organizations, OAME, Milepost 5, various professors 
at PSU, Warner-Pacific and Concordia; targeting outreach to communities of color.  Despite their best 
efforts, the grass roots tactic obviously did not work as well as planned.  That said the two new 
applicants are high quality; these, added to the remaining 60 applicants from the first round should 
combine to form a solid pool of candidates. 
 
Liz wondered if there was any evaluation of the applications yet. 
 
Stanley replied that he will review them once they are all put together.  He said he was disappointed 
that there were only 2 new applicants, and wondered how much of this is because no money was 
spent on advertising, or if instead it is because the Portland Plan isn’t widely resonating with Portland 
in general?  He said that on the street, when he encounters people a lot of them only have vague 
knowledge of the project name, but know little if anything about the content of the Plan. 
Liz mentioned that a different population wants to get involved in this stage of the Portland Plan, as 
opposed to the people showing interest when the Plan was just starting out. 
 
Peter said that, applications aside, he was disappointed in the lack of CIC members present at this 
CIC meeting.  He asked if it was not out of the question to create and pay for a Portland Timbers-style 
billboard that will help (re)establish interest in the Portland Plan. 
 
Howard asked if one reason for the lack of enthusiasm might be that people are happy with Portland 
as it is, and believe that, especially in comparison to other cities, it is functioning well.  He said that 
for the most part, Portland has a big reputation for being a good town.  In the words of Ron Tonkin, 
“we are Portland proud.” 
 
Stanley shared his belief that there is a significant portion of the population that for whatever reason 
does not share that optimistic view of Portland. 
 
Howard told the group that the subcommittee will meet on Friday and review the CIC applications, 
and will keep the CIC updated on their progress. 
 
Business Outreach Update 
 
Howard invited Barry Manning to talk about business outreach, focusing on the APNBA, which 
represents a larger number of smaller businesses compared to the Portland Business Alliance. 
 
Barry introduced himself and gave an update on Phase 3 business activities and the memo.  He said 
that after the Portland Plan Fairs, there was a desire to reach out directly to the business community.  
Barry thanked Peter for his input, which helped the decision to hold a citywide Portland Plan 
Business Forum.  The Forums were designed to take the “pulse” of the business community, to share 
and review the Draft Strategies and get them better acquainted with the Portland Plan. 
 
The first of the two Forums was held on April 29th at NW Natural, with more of a PBA focus.  This 
event was advertised widely through emails from the Mayor’s Office to various broad spectrum 
organizations, and reinforced through personal networks.  Eighty-two people attended. 
 
The second Forum took place at the Left Bank Annex on May 9th.  This was a smaller venue, focused 
specifically on the APBNA and small business in general.  APNBA took full responsibility for 

May 18, 2011 Portland Plan, CIC Minutes - Draft Page 6 of 9 



 

marketing the event.  The attendance goal was 50, and 30 people attended.  Barry felt that was a good 
number, given the amount of advertising.   
 
Barry said he will do another hosted presentation today, the 18th, at NINA.  Again, the focus of these 
events is to inform people about the strategies, and get feedback using voting clickers at the level of 
“right direction, neutral, wrong direction.” 
 
Howard asked how much time was spent at these events talking about equity.  Barry responded that 
neither the presenters nor the participants asked specifically about equity, it was simply stated as an 
overarching component of the Plan.  Both groups were almost exclusively interested in talking about 
the Economic Prosperity and Affordability and, to a lesser extent, the Healthy Connected 
Neighborhoods strategies.  In terms of the EPA piece, the PBA supported the idea of urban 
innovation and pursuit of a next generation business core more than the APBNA did.  The APNBA 
was more focused on business neighborhood vitality, and felt that this piece should be moved from 
the HCN to the EPA strategy. 
 
Stanley noted that using a weighted average, a vast majority of the Business Forum questions were 
voted as moving in the “right direction.”  He asked Barry if attention will be paid to the outliers.  
Barry responded that they would, most likely in a follow-up email directed at the “no” votes. 
 
Howard asked that, since equity wasn’t discussed at length in these forums, if we could reengage 
them later on about equity?  Barry said we could, and will do so later on, potentially in Equity-
focused follow-up meetings. 
 
Peter said that, again, the business differences can be traced to geography.  The PBA is mostly made 
up of west side and downtown core businesses, while the APNBA is concentrated in outlying 
neighborhood commercial districts.  From that point of view, their response to the Education piece is 
interesting.  This is a fairly well-represented group in terms of location and types of businesses, as 
well as demographics. 
 
Brian pointed out that in his view East Portland is underrepresented.  It is a very large geographic 
area, but they represent only 4% of the total business participation in the surveys. 
 
Marty replied that East Portland has a lot of residential population that lives there, but there are few 
businesses based in that part of town that would participate in this kind of outreach, thus the low 
percentage. 
 
Barry mentioned that Christina Scarzello is doing targeted outreach to east Portland businesses to get 
their take on the strategies. 
 
Linda suggested working with the East Portland Chamber of Commerce, as they are trying to act as a 
“counterweight” to the PBA. 
 
Barry said his take-away from the Forums is that people are talking, exchanging good information, 
and the APNBA in particular is learning a lot of new specific info about the Portland Plan.  Leading 
into the Forums their awareness level was “there’s this thing called the Portland Plan.” 
 
Peter added that he was impressed with attendance at the Forums. 
 
Howard encouraged Barry to involve the business community further about equity, and bring them 
closer to the Equity Initiative and we move into Phase 4. 

May 18, 2011 Portland Plan, CIC Minutes - Draft Page 7 of 9 



 

 
Update on grants to Diversity and Civic Leadership (DCL) Partners for culturally-appropriate 
Portland Plan involvement 
 
Marty reported that the last time the CIC met in April, an update on the DCL Partners involvement 
and/or influence on the Portland Plan Fairs had been given.  Recently, Deborah was invited to give a 
Portland Plan update to the Portland Indian Leaders Roundtable.  Lai-Lani is active with this group, 
and it was through Lai-Lani that shared the Northwest Health Foundation’s definition of equity as a 
possible replacement of the one included in the draft Equity Preamble.  Marty has done tabling with 
CIO, specifically through the SUN program at Harrison Park School.  CIO is going through a detailed 
review of the drafts, and should be in contact with their comments and recommendations soon. 
 
Marty went on to say that next week there will be a Portland Plan presentation and discussion at 
IRCO’s all staff meeting.  Bob, Matt and Marty met with Polo, while Deborah and Matt met Pei-ru to 
prepare for a 30-minute presentation.  Matt Wickstrom has other meetings in the works with Africa 
House and APANO. 
 
Marty asked if anyone had anything to add.  Linda asked for an update on the Comp Plan.  Eden 
replied that the Portland Plan Draft Plan should be ready by the end of July, and that the Graphics 
Team is presently coming up with a rough draft template to engage the most people possible. 
 
Stanley asked if opportunities could be created for CIC members to sit in with staff, even as 
observers, to see how staff is putting these things together.  Eden said she would try to invite 
members to future meetings. 
 
Linda requested a strategy to do outreach moving forward.  Marty went over the list of summer 
events, the next being the East Portland Expo, which the Draft Plan should be ready in time for.  That 
said, Marty acknowledged that outreach should be an agenda item for the next meeting. 
 
Linda asked if the Portland Plan would have a presence at Sunday Parkways.  Marty responded that 
they would skip the first two events, since there is no new substantive info to give people yet. 
 
Brian informed the group that he would be on extended leave from July through September.  He said 
that he would be willing to resign if the CIC had issues with that long of an absence.  As a group they 
said it was okay, he could stay on. 
 
Marty noted that as there will be no August CIC meeting, Brian will only miss one during his break. 
 
Howard closed with a few issues for the group to consider:  what disparity examples most resonate 
with a broad audience, and how they can frame a call for partner agencies and the private sector to 
join in, in order to reduce disparities. 
 
Howard adjourned the meeting. 
 
Next Steps: 
 
Next CIC meeting will be Wednesday, June 15, from 8:00 to 10:00am. 
 
Attachments  
 
The following documents should be considered part of the minutes for this meeting: 

May 18, 2011 Portland Plan, CIC Minutes - Draft Page 8 of 9 



 

May 18, 2011 Portland Plan, CIC Minutes - Draft Page 9 of 9 

 
 Equity Technical Action Group for Portland Plan 
 Equity Initiative 
 Community Involvement Committee Evaluation of Phase 3 Outreach and Engagement 
 Barry Manning – memo – Phase 3 Business Forums and Presentations 




















	CIC MINUTES - MAY 18 2011 - FINAL WITHOUT ATTACHMENTS
	CIC - May 18 2011 Minutes Attachments



